

USER GUIDE

Sensi+ Gas Analyzer



Disclaimer

This Guide and any accompanying software are copyrighted and all rights are reserved by ABB. This product, including software and documentation, may not be copied, photocopied, reproduced, translated, or reduced, in whole or in part, to any electronic medium or machine-readable format without prior written consent from ABB.

This document contains product specifications and performance statements that may be in conflict with other ABB published literature, such as product fliers and catalogs. All specifications, product characteristics, and performance statements included in this document are given as indications only. In case of discrepancies between specifications given in this document and specifications given in the official ABB product catalogs, the latter takes precedence.

ABB reserves the right to make changes to the specifications of all equipment and software, and contents of this document, without obligation to notify any person or organization of such changes. Every effort has been made to ensure that the information contained in this document is current and accurate. However, no guarantee is given or implied that the document is error-free or that the information is accurate.

ABB makes no representations or warranties with regard to the product and instructional and reference materials, including, but not limited to, all implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose.

ABB does not warrant, guarantee, or make any representations regarding the use, or the results of the use, of any software or written materials in terms of correctness, accuracy, reliability, currentness, or otherwise. ABB shall not be liable for errors or omissions contained in its software or manuals, any interruptions of service, loss of business or anticipatory profits and/or for incidental or consequential damages in connection with the furnishing, performance or use of these materials, even if ABB has been advised of the possibility of such damages.

All equipment, software, and manuals are sold as is. The entire risk as to the results and performance of the equipment and software is assumed by the user.

The software or hardware described in this document is distributed under a license and may be used, copied, or disclosed only in accordance with the terms of such license.

© ABB, 2022

[®] Microsoft and Excel are registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation

Table of Contents

1 Connecting to Sensi+

Connecting to the Analyzer	2
Connecting Locally	2
Connecting Remotely	2
Logging Into the Analyzer	3

2 Introducing the Sensi+ Gas Analyzer Software

Interface	6
Top Bar	6
Sidebar	6
Main Panel	7
Bottom Bar	7
Alarm Colors	7

3 Configuring Sensi+

4 Managing Alarms

Introducing NAMUR and Process Alarm	
Conventions	31
Displaying Alarms	32
Sorting Alarms	32
Acknowledging Alarms	33
Acknowledging One Alarm	33
Acknowledging More Than One Alarm	34
Acknowledging All Alarms at Once	35
Filtering Alarms	36
Filtering by Alarm Status	36
Filtering by Priority	37
Filtering by Alarm Type	38
Filtering by Time Period	40
Exporting Alarms	41

5 Managing Events

Displaying Events	43
Sorting Events	43
Acknowledging Events	44
Acknowledging One Event	44
Acknowledging More Than One Event.	45
Acknowledging All Events at Once	46
Filtering Events	47
Filtering by Event Status	47
Filtering by Priority	48
Filtering by Time Period	49
Exporting Events	51

6 Managing Reports

Generating Reports	53
Downloading Reports	54

7 Troubleshooting

Diagnosing Problems	55
Rebooting the Analyzer	57
Installing Firmware Updates	57
Performing Analyzer Validation	58
Performing Advanced Troubleshooting	59
About Your Sensi+ Gas Analyzer	60

A The Local Graphical User Interface

Information Panels	64
Measurements Panel	64
Non-Linear Trend Panels	65
Linear Trend Panels	66
Alarms	67
Diagnostics	68
Advanced Diagnostics	
System Information	



1

Ì

Connecting to Sensi+

Sensi+ is designed to be operational from the moment it comes online. Upon installation, the instrument is fully configured to work in a vast majority of gas analysis scenarios. However, situations might happen where you need to perform additional configurations and actions (adding users, extracting data, acknowledging system events, etc.). These configurations and actions are explained in this document.

NOTICE

All information related to the **physical** installation, connection, and troubleshooting of the Sensi+ gas analyzer can be found in the Sensi+ Installation and Commissioning Guide. Also, operators of this instrument should familiarize themselves with the content of the Sensi+ Product Safety Guide.

To perform these additional operations, you first need to connect to the instrument via either a wired (Ethernet) or wireless (WiFI) connection.

You will find these connections procedures in this chapter.

NOTICE—CYBERSECURITY

This product is designed to be connected to, and communicate information and data via a network interface. It is the user's sole responsibility to provide, and continuously ensure, a secure connection between the product and the user's network or any other network (as the case may be).

Users shall establish and maintain any and all appropriate measures (such as, but not limited to, the installation of firewalls, the application of authentication measures, the encryption of data, the installation of anti-virus programs, etc.) to protect the product, the network, its system and the interface against any kind of security breaches, unauthorized accesses, interferences, intrusions, leakages and/or theft of data or information.

ABB and its affiliates are not liable for damages and/or losses related to such security breaches, any unauthorized access, interference, intrusion, leakage and/or theft of data or information.

ABB strives to maintain cybersecurity for its products and services. By visiting the web page, you will find notifications about newly found software vulnerabilities and options to download the latest software. It is recommended that you visit this web page regularly:

http://new.abb.com/about/technology/cyber-security

Information about your product is also available on the product page:

https://bit.ly/3CHoNkE

Connecting to the Analyzer

The first step is to establish a link (wired or wireless) between your computer and Sensi+. This link can be established locally or remotely.

The following sections explain each method.

Connecting Locally

There are two methods for connecting locally:

- Via the external Ethernet port
- Via WiFi (optional)

Via the External Ethernet Port

To connect to the analyzer via the external Ethernet port:

- 1 Configure your laptop with the following fixed IP address:
 - Fixed IP Address: 10.0.0.x (replace the x with any number except 0 or 1)
 - Subnet Mask: 255.255.255.0



DANGER

Before performing the next step, make sure that the area is properly derated.

- **2** Connect an Ethernet cable (Cat 5 type, minimum) between your computer and the Sensi+ external Ethernet port (if necessary, refer to the Sensi+ Installation and Commissioning Guide to locate the external Ethernet port).
- 3 Launch your Web browser and point it to the following address: https//10.0.0.1 The Sensi+ web remote interface appears.



Via WiFi (Optional)

To connect to the analyzer via WiFi (available if an antenna is present):

- 1 Make sure that WiFi on your computer is active. By default, the analyzer WiFi connection is enabled.
- 2 On your computer, in the list of available WiFi connections, select the analyzer (e.g., **GLA533-xxxxxxxxx**).
- 3 When you are asked to provide the WiFi security password, enter Sens1plus! The Sensi+ web remote interface appears.
- **NOTE:** The WiFi password might have been modified upon commissioning of the analyzer. Make sure that you have the proper access information before trying to connect.

Connecting Remotely

Technically, once your computer is connected to the network shared with your analyzer, you are connected to your analyzer and you just need to log in as explained in the next section.

Logging Into the Analyzer

Once you are connected to the analyzer, you need log into it via its Web remote interface. The remote interface is accessible through most mainstream Web browsers. Sensi+ supports the latest versions of Chrome, Firefox, Internet Explorer and Safari. **Chrome is strongly suggested.**

To log into the analyzer:

- 1 Point your Web browser to the correct address:
 - If you are connected locally, through the external Ethernet port, enter the IP address https://10.0.0.1
 - If you are connected remotely via a network, enter the fixed IP address set during commissioning of the analyzer (refer to the Installation and Commissioning Guide for more information), or enter the IP address assigned by the DHCP server¹ (as displayed on the Sensi+ screen [see Figure 1]).²



Figure 1 Analyzer Address in the Web Browser

When your browser connects to the address entered, the Sensi+ application appears in the current browser tab.

¹ The address assigned by a DHCP server can be found on the Sensi+ analyzer screen or by scanning the network.

² It is suggested to bookmark this address for future references.

Figure 2 Sensi+ Gas Analyzer Application (administrator access rights)

		Sensi+			• •••	⊗
Measurements Alarms	Measurements					
 Events Settings > 	<mark>⊯</mark> H₂S	2:02:18 PM 2	0.4			
 ✓ Reports ✗ Users ✓ Maintenance > 	<mark>⇔</mark> CO₂	2:02:18 PM 1 %vol	0.6			
⑦ Help →	H₂O	2:02:18 PM ppmv	1.2			
				k		
× ⑦ ⊡ admin				(în c	Sep 1, 2022 ① 2:02 PM	ABB
Ī						

Login/Logout icon

NOTE: The interface that you see in Figure 2 might differ slightly, depending on your access rights.

- 2 Click the Login/Logout icon (see Figure 2).
- 3 In the dialog box that appears, enter your username and password.
- **NOTE:** The default username and password should have been modified during analyzer commissioning. Refer to the Installation and Commissioning Guide for more information.
- 4 Click Login. The interface automatically adapts to your access rights.

CHAPTER 2

Introducing the Sensi+ Gas Analyzer Software

The Sensi+ gas analyzer application allows you to configure the analyzer, manage its data and user accesses, generate reports, and perform basic maintenance tasks.

When your browser connects to the address entered, the Sensi+ application screen appears in the main window.

NOTE: The interface that you see in Figure 3 below may be slightly different from the one that you see on your screen, depending on the operator's access rights to the system. For more information, see "Configuring User Profiles" on page 26.



Figure 3 Sensi+ Gas Analyzer Application Screen (logged in as administrator)

Interface

The following pages provide an overview of the main areas of the Sensi+ application interface.

Top Bar

The application top bar displays two icons illustrating Process and NAMUR alarm categories. A number above one of these icons indicates the number of current alarms for the alarm category (seven process alarms in Figure 4 below). For more information on alarms, see "Managing Alarms" on page 31.



Sidebar

The application sidebar provides access to most of the Sensi+ gas analyzer operational functions and options.



Main Panel

The application main panel displays measurements, alarms and events, as well as all operational functions and configuration options.





Bottom Bar

The application bottom bar provides access to notifications, user documentation and the login function.



Alarm Colors

Process and NAMUR alarms indicated in an Alarm or Event table are assigned a specific color. These colors (cyan, amber, red) carry the same meaning throughout the graphical user interface. They are explained in more details in "Introducing NAMUR and Process Alarm Conventions" on page 31.

Page intentionally left blank



The Sensi+ gas analyzer is designed to be a plug-and-play instrument. Its default configuration aims at covering over 90% of use cases. However, there are situations where you might need to modify this default configuration. This chapter explains how to modify this configuration, once you established a link with the gas analyzer (see "Connecting to the Analyzer" on page 2).

Changing Default Administrator Password

NOTICE

1

For cybersecurity reasons, it is considered a best practice to change passwords after initial analyzer installation, and regularly thereafter. Not doing so could expose your entire network to cyberattacks.

With Sensi+, parameters, functions and interface items are made available depending on the password used to access the system (not the user name).

Upon connecting with the system for the first time, you are presented with the basic Operator remote software interface.

To change the default administrator password:

- 1 Click the Login/Logout icon in the bottom bar (see Figure 7 on page 7).
- 2 In the Login dialog box that appears (see Figure 8 on page 9), enter the default administrator username and password and click Login at the bottom right of the dialog box.

If the original username and password were not changed as required during commissioning of the analyzer, the default administrator username and password are still:

- Username admin
- Password Sens1plus!
- Figure 8 Entering the Default Username and Password

Login	
Login	
Username	
Enter username	
Password	
Enter password	Lc

3 Once logged in as an administrator, click **Users** in the Sensi+ application sidebar (see "Sidebar" on page 6). The **Users** panel appears to the right.

Figure 9	Users Panel									
					Sensi+				<mark>⊞</mark> ®	×
	Measurements Alarms		Users							
	🛱 Events		User ©	Role	Create user					
	Settings Configuration		Administrator Operator	Administrator Operator	User Name:		-			
	Reports				Full Name:					
	Users				Account Enabled:					
	Maintenance Help				Account Unlocked:	•				
	C map				User Role:		×			
					Preferred Language:	English				
					Initial password:		۲			
					Confirm Password:		۲			
		~								
	\$? ∃	admin						Ŷ.	Sep 1, 2022 4:44 PM	ABB

- 4 On the **Users** panel, in the **User** list below, click the user named **Administrator**. Its information is displayed in the panel to the right.
- 5 If necessary, in the Administrator panel, change the Full name for something more meaningful.

NOTE: The user name entered when creating a new user **cannot** be changed.

- 6 In the **Change Password** text field, enter a new password (to make sure that the password is correct, you can reveal it by clicking the eye icon to the right of the text field).
- 7 In the **Confirm Password** text field, enter the same password as the one entered in the **Change password** text field.

The **Confirm Password** text field is highlighted in red until both passwords match perfectly.

8 Click **Apply** at the bottom of the User panel.

The administrator password is now changed as well as the name displayed for all users with administrator access rights.

Configuring Analyzer Date and Time

Analyzer date and time should have been set during commissioning of the analyzer. Normally, they do not need to be changed unless 1) the electronics containing the clock chip have been changed, or 2) the clock has drifted over a long period of time (±5 years).

When launching the gas analyzer remote interface, the proper date and time should appear in the bottom bar right corner, next to the ABB logo.



Figure 10 Sensi+ Application Bottom Bar



If this is not the case, a circled ; appears next to the clock, as shown in Figure 10.

To synchronize the clock:

- 1 In the Sensi+ application sidebar, select **Settings > Configuration**. The **Configuration** panel appears.
- 2 In the **Configuration** panel, select **General**.

J	Figure 11	Setting	Proper	Date	and	Time	Zone
----------	-----------	---------	--------	------	-----	------	------

		Sensi+				•••	×
Measurements Alarms	Configuration						
🛱 Events		General					
 Settings Configuration 	Gas Parameters Physical Interfaces	Instrument Name:					
Reports		H₂S High High Alarm Delay:					
Users		H₂S Unit:	ppmv				
Maintenance Maintenance		CO _z Unit:	%vol 🗸				
		H₂O Unit:	ppmv ×				
		Temperatures Unit:	Celsius				
		Instrument Time:	01-Sep-2022 18:33:44				
		Instrument Time Zone:	Etc/GMT+0 V				
		Your Time Zone:	America/Toronto				
			Synchronize Time Synchronize Time Zone				
**						Sep 1 2022	
admin 🔁 🖓				(î:	-	① 6:33 PM	ABB

- **3** At the bottom of the **General** panel, click **Synchronize Time Zone**. The analyzer time synchronizes with the connected PC time zone.
- 4 Click **Apply** to finish the synchronization procedure.

Naming Your Analyzer

If your Sensi+ is part of a fleet of instruments managed through a network, it is a good idea to assign each instrument on the network a meaningful and easily recognizable name.

To assign a name to your Sensi+:

- 1 In the Sensi+ application sidebar, select **Settings > Configuration**.
- 2 In the **Configuration** panel displayed, select **General**.

Figure 12 Configuring Sensi+ General Parameters

			Sensi+				•	×
Image: MeasurementsAlarms		Configuration						
📰 Events			General					
Settings Configuration		Gas Parameters Physical Interfaces	Instrument Name:		•			
Reports			H ₂ S High High Alarm Delay:					
🎬 Users			H₂S Unit:	ppmv				
🏓 Maintenance			60 H-#					
⑦ Help			CO ₂ Unit:	70101				
			H ₂ O Unit:	ppmv				
			Temperatures Unit:	Celsius				
			Instrument Time:	01-Sep-2022 15:17:33	•			
			Instrument Time Zone:	America/Toronto				
📌 ? 🔁 adm	nin				ę	÷.	Sep 1, 2022 3:17 PM	ABB

- **3** Assign a name to the analyzer in the **Instrument Name** text field.
- 4 Click Apply.

Configuring the Temperature Unit

The Sensi+ default temperature unit is the Celsius (°C), but you can change it to the Fahrenheit (°F) is necessary.

To do so:

- 1 In the Sensi+ application sidebar, select **Settings > Configuration**.
- 2 In the **Configuration** panel displayed, select **General**.

Figure 13 Configuring Sensi+ Temperature Units

	S	**	×		
🕼 Measurements	Configuration				
Events		General			
 Settings Configuration 	Gas Parameters	Instrument Name:			
Reports	rnysical interfaces	H₂S High High Alarm Delay:	6		
Haintenance		H₂S Unit:	ppmv		
⑦ Help >		CO _z Unit:	%vol		
		H₂O Unit:	ppmv		
		Temperatures Unit:	Celstus	×.	
		Instrument Time:	Celstus Fahrenheit		
		Instrument Time Zone:	America/Toronto		
~					
🛕 🕐 🔁 admin			 ? .∎	Sep 2, 2022 12:44 PM	ABB

- 3 In the **Temperature Unit** drop-down menu, select **Fahrenheit**.
- 4 Click **Apply**. Temperature units will now be Fahrenheit (°F) throughout the application.

Configuring Gas Measurement Units

Each gas measurement made by Sensi+ (H_2S , CO_2 , and H_2O) can be displayed with one of the following measurement units: ppvm, %vol and mg/m³.

To configure each gas's measurement unit:

- 1 In the Sensi+ application sidebar, select **Settings > Configuration**.
- 2 In the **Configuration** panel displayed, select **General** (see Figure 14).
- **3** For each gas measured, select the measurement unit from a drop-down menu.



		Sensi+					•••	×
lueasurements ▲ Alarms	Configuration							
🗰 Events		General						
Image: Settings ✓ Configuration ✓ Image: Settings ✓ Image: Settings ✓ Maintenance > Ø Help	Gas Parameters Physical Interfaces	Instrument Name: H ₂ S High High Alarm Delay: H ₂ S Unit: CO ₂ Unit: H ₂ O Unit: Temperatures Unit: Instrument Time: Instrument Time Zone:	6 ppmv %vol ppmv ppmv %vol 01-sep -2022 15:21:29 America/Toronto	5 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7				
~								
📌 ? 🔁 admin					(îr:	÷.	Sep 1, 2022 3:21 PM	ABB

4 Once the appropriate measurement units are selected, click **Apply**.

The selected measurement units will be used where appropriate throughout the application.

Configuring Gas Parameters

Gas measurements range and threshold values are factory-set to simplify commissioning. However, these values can be modified if the initial configuration does not correspond to your current situation. The following pages explain how to perform these modifications.

NOTICE

Ì

When modifying display range and alarm threshold values, they must follow this logical relation:

- Min Display Range < High Alarm Threshold
- High Alarm Threshold \leq High High Alarm Threshold
- High High Alarm Threshold < Max Display Range

Configuring the Display Range

Display range values help visualize the recorded data shown in the **Measurements** panel. The values displayed are in direct relation with the 4–20 mA values defined during commissioning of the analyzer. Refer to the Sensi+ Installation and Commissioning Guide for more information.



To set the value display range:

- 1 From the Sensi+ application sidebar, click **Settings** > **Configuration**.
- 2 In the **Configuration** panel, select **Gas Parameters** and, under the **Name** column, select the gas whose display range you want to set (see Figure 16 on page 16).



		Sensi+				.	×
# MeasurementsAlarms	Configuration						
Events	General	Gas Parameters					
 ♦ Settings Configuration ♦ Reports ♥ Users ♥ Maintenance > ♥ Help > 	Gas Parameters Physical Interfaces	Name H ₂ S CO ₂ H ₂ O	H ₂ S Min Display Range: High Alarm Threshold: High High Alarm Threshold: Max Display Range: Zero Offset: Span Gain:	0 12 176 25 0 1	ppmv ppmv ppmv ppmv	k	
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~			Cancel Apply				
📲 ? 🔁 admin						Sep 1, 2022 3:36 PM	ABB

3 Enter the appropriate values in the Min Display Range and Max Display Range text fields (see below).

Figure 17 Setting the Display Range	Figure 17	Setting the	Display Range
-------------------------------------	-----------	-------------	---------------

Configuration						
General	Gas Parameters					
Gas Parameters Physical Interfaces	Name	H₂S				۳.,
	H ₂ S CO ₂	Min Display Range:	0	ppmv		
	H₂O	High Alarm Threshold:	12	ppmv		
		High High Alarm Threshold:	17.6	ppmv	•	
		Max Display Range:	25	ppmv		
		Zero Offset:	o	ppmv		
		Span Gain:				
		Cancel Apply				

- **NOTE:** The unit of measurement used can be changed as necessary (see "Configuring Gas Measurement Units" on page 14). Units of measurements are for each gas.
- 4 Click **Apply** at the bottom of the panel.

The display range is set. You can repeat this procedure for the remaining gases.

## **Configuring Alarm Thresholds**

Alarm thresholds help highlight problematic levels of a substance in the gas. These thresholds are visible on the **Measurements** panel.

The **High Alarm** threshold is a warning that indicates that attention should be given to a rising gas level. It is indicated by the amber color in the **Measurements** panel.

The **High High Alarm** threshold is the actual alarm level where contamination requires actions to be taken. When a High High alarm is registered for any of the measured contaminants, the block valve to the pipeline is closed after the delay set for the High High H₂S alarm (see "Changing the H₂S High High Alarm Delay" on page 19). It is indicated by the color red in the **Measurements** panel.





To set the alarm thresholds:

- 1 From the Sensi+ application sidebar, click **Settings** > **Configuration**.
- 2 In the **Configuration** panel, select **Gas Parameters** and, under the **Name** column, select the gas whose alarm thresholds you want to set.

Figure 19 Setting H₂S Alarm Thresholds

			Sensi+				<b>•</b>	8
<ul><li>Measurements</li><li>Alarms</li></ul>	Config	uration						
Events	Gener	ral	Gas Parameters					
Settings Configuration	<ul> <li>Gas P</li> <li>Physic</li> </ul>	arameters cal Interfaces	Name	H₂S				
Reports			H ₂ S CO ₂	Min Display Range:		ppmv		
Maintenance			H₂O	High Alarm Threshold:	12	ppmv		
⑦ Help				High High Alarm Threshold:	17.6	ppmv	*	
				Max Display Range:	25	ppmv		
				Zero Offset:		ppmv		
				Span Gain:				
📌 ? 🔁 admin							Sep 1, 2022 3:36 PM	ABB

**3** Enter the appropriate values in the **High Alarm Threshold** and **High High Alarm Threshold** text fields.

Figure 20 Setting the Alarm Thresholds

General	Gas Parameter	rs						
Gas Parameters Physical Interfaces	Name	H₂S	H _z S					
	H ₂ S CO ₂ H ₂ C	Min Display Range:		ppmv				
		High Alarm Threshold:	12	ppmv				
		High High Alarm Threshold:	17.6	ppmv	R			
		Max Display Range:	25	ppmv				
		Zero Offset:		ppmv				
		Span Gain:						

- **NOTE:** The unit of measurement used can be changed as necessary (see "Configuring Gas Measurement Units" on page 14). Units of measurements are for each gas.
- 4 Click **Apply** at the bottom of the panel.

The alarm thresholds are set. You can repeat this procedure for the remaining gases.

## Modifying Zero Offsets and Span Gains

These values must be used solely by properly qualified service personnel and should never be modified by unauthorized users.

## Changing the H₂S High High Alarm Delay

The  $H_2S$  high high alarm delay is the delay between the moment the high high threshold is reached and the moment it is reported (see "Configuring Alarm Thresholds" on page 17). This value must be modified solely by properly qualified service personnel and should never be modified by unauthorized users.

The default delay is six seconds. It ensures that at least three consecutive values are measured above the **Alarm High High** threshold before an alarm is raised.

To change this delay:

- 1 In the Sensi+ application sidebar, select **Settings** > **Configuration**.
- 2 In the **Configuration** panel displayed select **General**.

Figure 21 Configuring Sensi+ H₂S High High Alarm Delay

		Sensi+				<b>•••</b>	×
<ul><li>Image: Measurements</li><li>Alarms</li></ul>	Configuration						
	ngs V Gas Parameters wriguration Physical Interfaces p tenance V	Instrument Name: H ₂ S High High Alarm Delay: H ₂ S Unit:	6 s ppmv v				
° (7) Help →		CO ₂ Unit: H ₄ O Unit: Temperatures Unit: Instrument Time: Instrument Time Zone:	%vol     v       ppmv     v       Celstus     v       01-Sep-2022 15:51:25     I       America/Toronto     v				
						61 2022	
🔎 ? 🔁 admin				(îr	. <b>T</b> .	Sep 1, 2022 3:51 PM	ABB

3 Modify the number of seconds in the  $H_2S$  High High Alarm Delay field.

#### 4 Click Apply.

From now on, the set delay will start to count down after recording the first value above the High High threshold. If more values are measured above that threshold during the countdown, the analyzer will raise a High High Alarm and shut down the block value to the pipeline.

## **Configuring Internal Connectors**

In the first version of the Sensi+ gas analyzers, internal connectors are preconfigured, and very few modifications can be performed. Modifications can be performed on the Ethernet ports, the WiFi connection and the analog output state. These modifications are explained in the following pages.

#### MODBUS PROTOCOL DISCLAIMER

The Modbus® protocol is an unsecured protocol and, as such, the intended application of this system should be assessed to ensure that these protocols are suitable before implementation. To prevent any unauthorized accesses, always ensure that physical access to the analyzer and network are properly secured. For cybersecurity reasons, ABB decided not to password protect the Modbus communication protocol in Sensi+ series analyzers.

The Sensi+ (GLA533) analyzer requires access to the following TCP ports on the intranet:

– Modbus 502

ľ

- TTPS Web Service 443

### Modifying the Client Ethernet Port Configuration

The Client Ethernet port, accessible during installation and commissioning (see the Sensi+ Installation and Commissioning Guide) is configured to be a DHCP client. As such, a DHCP host will automatically attribute an IP address to the analyzer upon connection to the network.

However, it is possible to configure the Client Ethernet port with a fixed IP address.

To modify the Client Ethernet port:

- 1 In the Sensi+ application sidebar, select **Settings > Configuration**.
- 2 In the Configuration panel displayed, select Physical Interfaces > Client Ethernet

Figure 22 Configuring Sensi+ Client Ethernet Port

		Sensi+					<b>•••</b>	8
8ª Measurements ▲ Alarms Events	Configuration	Physical Interfaces						
<ul> <li>Settings ✓</li> <li>Configuration</li> <li>Configuration</li> <li>Users</li> <li>✓ Maintenance &gt;</li> <li>⑦ Help &gt;</li> </ul>	Gas Parameters Physical Interfaces	Name Chent Ethernet Service Ethernet WiFi I/O Boards	Client Ethernet User Label: MAC Address: DHCP: Cancel Apply	Client -				
admin					((ı:	<del>.Т.</del>	Sep 1, 2022 3:53 PM	ABB

3 In the Client Ethernet panel, click the blue DHCP toggle button. This hides the analyzer from the DHCP host and provides specific network connection text fields, as shown in Figure 23.

Name	Client Ethernet			
	Liser Label	Client		
Service Ethernet		Clicit		
WiFi	MAC Address:			
I/O Boards	DHCP:	•		
	IP Address:	192.168.0.100		
	IP Mask:	255.255.255.0		
	Gateway:	192.168.0.1		
	Cancel	v		

- 4 Enter the appropriate IP address information relevant to your network in the available fields (IP Address, IP Mask, Gateway)
- 5 Click Apply.

The Client Ethernet port becomes visible again on your network, based on the information that you just entered.

**NOTE:** If necessary, you can also modify the port user label by changing the text in the **User Label** text field.

### Modifying the Service Ethernet Port Configuration

The Sensi+ Service Ethernet port is configured with a fixed IP address (**10.0.0.1**). This address cannot be modified. However, you can modify its user label.

To modify the Service Ethernet port user label:

- 1 In the Sensi+ application sidebar, select **Settings > Configuration**.
- 2 In the **Configuration** panel displayed, select **Physical Interfaces** > **Service Ethernet**

Figure 24 Configuring Sensi+ Service Ethernet Port User Label

		Sensi+					<b>••</b>	×
<ul> <li>Image: Measurements</li> <li>▲ Alarms</li> </ul>	Configuration							
Events	General	Physical Interfaces						
<ul> <li>Settings </li> <li>Configuration</li> </ul>	Gas Parameters Physical Interfaces	Name	Service Ethernet					
Reports		Client Ethernet	User Label:	Service				
📇 Users		Service Ethernet	MACAddama					
✗ Maintenance →			MAC Address:					
(?) Help >			IP Address:	10.0.0.1				
			IP Mask:	255.255.255.0				
«								
admin					<u>ن</u>	류	Sep 1, 2022	ARR
							4:01 PM	

- **3** Change the text in the **User Label** text field.
- 4 Click Apply.

The Service Ethernet port user label is modified.

## **Configuring Output Connectors**

In the first version of Sensi+, parameters sent through the output connectors (analog and digital) cannot be modified. The proper connections inside the instrument should have been performed during commissioning (for more information, refer to the Sensi+ Installation and Commissioning Guide)

However, since Sensi+ analog connectors are compatible with active or passive modes, you can configure this parameter in the Web remote interface. **By default, analog connectors are set to passive mode.** 



#### NOTICE

**DO NOT** change from passive to active mode without first consulting with the personnel who performed the initial installation. Doing so without proper authorization from qualified personnel could damage the analyzer.

To set analog connectors in active mode:

- 1 In the Sensi+ application sidebar, select **Settings > Configuration**.
- 2 In the **Configuration** panel displayed, select **Physical Interfaces > I/O Boards**.
- 3 Next to the AOs State drop-down menu, select Active (see Figure 25).
- 4 Click Apply.
- **5** Reboot Sensi+ (see "Rebooting the Analyzer" on page 57).

Figure 25 Configuring Sensi+ Active Mode for Analog Outputs (AOs)

		Sensi+					<b>•••</b>	×
8 Measurements ▲ Alarms Events	Configuration	Physical Interfaces						
Image: Sectings       ✓         Configuration       ✓         Image: Secting section (Section (Sect	Gas Parameters Physical Interfaces	Name Client Ethernet Service Ethernet WiFi 1/O Boards	I/O Boards DOG: DO7: DO8: AO5 State: AO1: AO2: AO3: AO3: AO4: Cancel Apply	H _A O Falled Unused Unused Passive Active CO ₂ H _A O				
着 ? 🔁 admin					(î:-	<b>.</b>	Sep 1, 2022 4:04 PM	ABB

## Configuring the WiFi Connection (optional)

On Sensi+, the WiFi connection is optional. If your Sensi+ comes with this option, an antenna will be visible on the instrument housing. In such a situation, WiFi connectivity is enabled by default. Few parameters can be modified in the first version of the instrument. The analyzer's country of operation, IP address (10.0.1.1) and SSID (GLA533-CPU_Serial_Number) cannot be modified in the original version of Sensi+.

### Disabling/Enabling the WiFi connection

To disable (or re-enable) the WiFi connection:

- 1 In the Sensi+ application sidebar, select **Settings > Configuration**.
- 2 In the Configuration panel displayed, select Physical Interfaces > WiFi

#### Figure 26 Configuring Sensi+ WiFi connection

		Sensi+						×2
It Measurements ▲ Alarms	Configuration							
🛱 Events	General	Physical Interfaces						
♥     Settings     >       ₩     Reports     #       ₩     Users     /        Maintenance     >       ⑦     Help     >	Gas Parameters Physical Interfaces	Name Client Ethernet Service Ethernet WIFI I/O Boards	WiFi Country: Enabled: IP Address: SSID: Password: Cancel	US 10.0.1.1 GLA533-DYD0K0010	•			
*								
🜲 🕐 🔁 admin					(î:-	<b>.</b>	lov 3, 2022 ) 11:52 AM	ABB

- **3** Click the toggle button next to **Enabled**. The toggle button turns black.
- 4 Click **Apply** at the bottom of the panel.

The WiFi connection becomes inactive.

If you were currently connected via WiFi, you lose the connection immediately.

### Changing the WiFi Password

By default, the Sensi+ password is **Sens1plus!**. It should have been changed upon commissioning of Sensi+.

**NOTE:** If you forgot the WiFi password, only users with administrator or maintenance privileges can recover that password from the analyzer WiFi configuration parameters.

To change it again:

- 1 In the Sensi+ application sidebar, select **Settings > Configuration**.
- 2 In the Configuration panel displayed, select Physical Interfaces > WiFi (see Figure 26 on page 24).
- 3 In the **Password** text field, enter a new password.

To ensure that you enter the correct password, click the "eye" icon on the right-hand side of the text field to reveal the exact content of the password (see Figure 27).





#### 4 Click **Apply** at the bottom of the panel.

The new password is now in effect, and will be valid on the **next** connection.

## **Configuring User Profiles**

Different types of users have access to different types of functions in the Sensi+ Web remote interface.

#### NOTICE

1

Only users logged in as administrators can create, modify, or delete user profiles.

### **Creating a User Profile**

To create a user profile:

Figure 28 Creating a User

- 1 In the Sensi+ application sidebar, select **Users**.
- 2 In the **Users** panel displayed, click the **+** sign next to the **User** list title. The **Create user** panel appears to the right.

				Sensi+						<b>••</b>	×
Measurements Alarms		Users									
🖻 Events		User 😡	Role	Create user							
Settings		Administrator	Administrator			•					
Configuration		Operator	Operator	Oser Name:							
Reports				Full Name:							
				Account Enabled:							
🔑 Maintenance				Account Unlocked:							
⑦ Help				User Role:			N				
				Preferred Language:	English						
				Initial password:		۲					
				Confirm Password:		۲					
🗳 ? 🗦 🔹	dmin							(îr-	<b>.</b>	Sep 1, 2022 4:44 PM	ABB

- 3 Enter the appropriate information in each field as detailed below:
  - User Name: the name with which the system will recognize the user (between 3 and 30 characters). It is the name to enter when logging into the system. Once created, this user name cannot be changed. There cannot be two identical user names
  - Full name: the real name of the user whose profile you are creating.
  - Account Enabled: by default, a new user account is disabled. Only administrators can enable and disable user accounts (e.g., when an employee leaves). To enable an account, click the Account Enabled toggle button. The toggle button turns blue to indicate activation.
  - Account Unlocked: by default, a new user account is unlocked. A user account can be locked by the system (e.g., after reaching the maximum number of failed password input). Only administrators can unlock user accounts. To unlock it, click the Account Unlocked toggle button. The toggle button turns blue to indicate activation.
  - User Role: each role provides specific access rights to its user. Three roles exist in the original version of the gas analyzer: Operator, Maintenance and Administrator.

	Operator	Maintonanco	Administrator
	Operator	Maintenance	Administrator
Measurements panel	No restrictions	No restrictions	No restrictions
Alarms and Events panels	Export, Filter	Acknowledge, annotate, export, filter	Acknowledge, annotate, export, filter
<b>Configuration</b> panel	Vew	View and modify	View and modify
Reports panel	No restrictions	No restrictions	No restrictions
Users panel	Not visible	Not visible	View and modify
<b>Maintenance</b> panel	View analyzer local display	<ul> <li>View analyzer local display</li> <li>View and modify Validation panel</li> <li>View and modify Analyzer panel</li> <li>View and modify Advanced panel</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>View analyzer local display</li> <li>View and modify Validation panel</li> <li>View and modify Analyzer panel</li> <li>View and modify Advanced panel</li> </ul>
Help panel	No restrictions	No restrictions	No restrictions

- **Preferred Language:** in the original version of the gas analyzer, only English is available.
- Change Password: enter a password. When you enter a password, the Confirm Password field becomes highlighted in red.

To ensure that you enter the correct password, click the "eye" icon on the right-hand side of the text field to reveal the exact content of the password (see Figure 27 on page 25).

- Confirm Password (highlighted in red once a password is entered in the field Change Password): reenter the same password as the one you entered in the Change Password field. When you reenter the password correctly, the red highlight disappears.

To ensure that you enter the correct password, click the "eye" icon on the right-hand side of the text field to reveal the exact content of the password (see Figure 27 on page 25).

i

#### PASSWORD MANAGEMENT RULES

- Passwords must be between 3 and 12 (users) or 16 (administrators) characters long.
- Passwords can contain lowercase and uppercase letters, special characters and numbers.
- Administrator passwords must contain characters from at least two categories.
- Any user is locked out of the system after the 9th try at entering a password.
   Administrators are locked out for 15 minutes and users, 5 minutes.
- Administrators can unlock any other user and reset all other passwords.
- If all passwords are forgotten (including the last administrator password), the analyzer will be completely locked and require a factory reset, thus erasing to complete content of all internal databases.
- 4 Click **Create**. The new user profile appears in the **User** list and this user can now enter the Web remote interface according to its role.

## Modifying a User Profile

To modify a user profile:

- 1 In the Sensi+ application sidebar, select **Users**.
- 2 In the **Users** panel displayed, select the user whose profile you want to modify.

Figure 29	Editing a User Pro	ofile									
					Sensi+					<b>•••</b>	×
	<ul><li># Measurements</li><li>Alarms</li></ul>		Users								
	🛱 Events		User 🕀	Role	Operator 🖻						
	Settings Configuration		Administrator Operator	Administrator Operator	User Name:	operator	<b>.</b>				
	Reports				Full Name:	Operator					
	📇 Users				Account Enabled:	-					
	Maintenance				Account Unlocked:						
	(?) Help				User Role:	Operator					
					Preferred Language:	English					
					Change Password:		۲				
					Confirm Password:		۲				
	\$ ? ∃	admin						((:-	÷.	Sep 1, 2022 4:46 PM	ABB

**3** Modify the information as necessary.

**NOTE:** The user name **cannot** be modified.

4 Click Apply. The modified information becomes active.

## **Deleting a User Profile**

To delete a user profile:

- 1 In the Sensi+ application sidebar, select **Users**.
- 2 In the **Users** panel displayed, select the user profile that you want to delete.
- **3** Click the trash can icon next to the user name at the top of the panel. The user profile is deleted and the person using this profile will no longer have access to the associated functions.

		Sensi+			<b>H</b>	×
<ul><li># Measurements</li><li>Alarms</li></ul>	Users					
Events	User 🕀 Role	Operator 💼				
Settings ~ Configuration	Administrator Administrator Operator Operator	User Name:	operator			
Reports		Full Name:	Operator			
		Account Enabled:	<u> </u>			
✗ Maintenance →		Account Unlocked:				
(2) Help >		User Role:	Operator ~			
		Preferred Language:	English			
		Change Password:	Enter password 🔹			
		Confirm Password:	Enter password •			
🗳 ? 🔁 admin				ê 🗄	Sep 1, 2022 4:46 PM	ABB

Figure 30 Deleting a User Profile

Page intentionally left blank



# **Managing Alarms**

Alarms can be raised when abnormal situations occur in a monitored process (process alarms) or the analyzer (NAMUR alarms). The following pages explain how to manage these alarms.

## Introducing NAMUR and Process Alarm Conventions

The analyzer can raise two alarm types: process and NAMUR. Process alarms indicate abnormal situations within the process (the monitored substances), whereas NAMUR alarms relate to abnormal situations within the analyzer itself.

These are the process alarms:

Table 2	Process	۵larms
Tablez	FIUCESS /	AIAIIIIS

_

Alarm	lcon	Meaning
Alert (red)		High High Alarm threshold value reached (as configured in the analyzer)
Warning (amber)		High Alarm threshold value reached (as configured in the analyzer)
Information (cyan)		Low priority notification, mostly refering to a low gas quality

For additional information on configuring alarm thresholds, see "Configuring Alarm Thresholds" on page 17.

Table 3 NAMUR Alarms

Alarm	lcon	Meaning
Failure	×	Because of hardware problems, values provided by the analyzer are not to be trusted, and IMMEDIATE action must be taken.
Check function	V	Because of hardware problems, values provided by the analyzer are not to be trusted.
Out of specificaton	?	When the analyzer recognizes that it is not operating under conditions in which is it supposed to be operating.
Maintenance required		Because of hardware problems usualy related to a part of the instrument that is about to reach its end of life, values provided by the instrument are still valid, but might not be for very long anymore.

## **Displaying Alarms**

General alarm notifications appear in the top right corner of the Sensi+ application (see Figure 4 on page 6).

To display specific alarms (process or NAMUR), click the appropriate icon. The relevant **Alarms** table appears, AND the **Filters** panel appears as well to confirm which alarms are displayed.

You can also click **Alarms** from the Sensi+ application sidebar. When displaying alarms this way, they are not automatically filtered by alarm type (process vs. NAMUR).

## Sorting Alarms

In the **Alarms** panel, you can sort alarms in chronological or reverse chronological order. By default, alarms are sorted in reverse chronological order (most recent first).

To sort alarms:

1 From the Sensi+ application, click **Alarms** in the sidebar.

Figure 31 Alarms Panel

									reports icon	Filter icon
									× ×	1
					Ser	nsi+				् 🖃 🔪
I Measurements										
Alarms		Alarm	IS							
Events										به م
Settings										
Reports			Ack T	Priority T	Туре т	Time 🗘	T	Message ID	Description	
Tusers 📸										
🏓 Maintenance										
⑦ Help			0							
						9/2/2022, 9:12:57 AM				
			0							
			0							
			0							
			0							
			0							
	**									
	admin								a 1	Sep 2, 2022

Exporting

Advanced

2 In the **Time** column, click ▼ to sort alarms starting with the latest, and ▲ to sort them starting from the earliest.
## **Acknowledging Alarms**

From the **Alarms** table, you can acknowledge individual alarms, more than one alarm or all alarms at once. The following pages explain these procedures.

**NOTE:** Alarms displaying a dash in the **Ack** column cannot be acknowledged and removed from the **Alarms** table.

### Acknowledging One Alarm

To acknowledge just one alarm:

1 From the **Alarms** table, underneath the **Ack** column, check the box next to the alarm that you want to acknowledge (see Figure 32).



				Sensi	+
	Alarm	าร			
<b>`</b>		Ack <b>T</b>	Priority <b>T</b>	Туре 🔻	
				•	
				•	
				•	
>				•	
				•	
				•	6/

**2** As soon as you check the box in the **Ack** column, a **Comment** dialog box appears (see Figure 33) where you can enter a comment as to why you acknowledge the selected alarm.



Acknowledge 1 events	×
Comment	
	Acknowledge

**3** Once the comment is entered, click **Acknowledge**. The selected alarm is acknowledged and disappears from the **Alarms** table.

If you need to review the alarm once it has been acknowledged, go to the **Events** table (for more information on managing events, see "Managing Events" on page 43).

### Acknowledging More Than One Alarm

To acknowledge more than one alarm:

1 From the **Alarms** table, in the leftmost column (left of the **Ack** column), check the boxes next to the alarms that you want to acknowledge (see Figure 34).



Figure 34 Checking More Than One Box Next to Alarms to Acknowledge

2 Click the checkmark at the top of the column (see Figure 34). As soon as you click the checkmark, a Comment dialog box appears (see Figure 35) where you can enter a comment as to why you acknowledge the selected alarms.

Figure 35	Commenting on Alarms Acknowledgment	
	Acknowledge 3 events	×
	Comment	
	Acknowled	lge

**3** Once the comment is entered, click **Acknowledge**. The selected alarms are acknowledged and disappear from the **Alarms** table.

If you need to review the alarms once they have been acknowledged, go to the **Events** table (for more information on managing events, see "Managing Events" on page 43).

### Acknowledging All Alarms at Once

To acknowledge all alarms at once:

1 From the **Alarms** table, in the leftmost column (left of the **Ack** column), check the box in the column title. This selects all current alarms (see Figure 36).

				Sensi	+
	Alarn	ns			
	~				
>		Ack T	Priority <b>T</b>	Туре 🔻	
				۲	<mark>6/</mark> 10/20
	2			۲	<mark>6/</mark> 10/2
>	2			۲	<mark>6/</mark> 10/20
>	2			•	<mark>6/</mark> 10/3
	2			•	<mark>6/</mark> 10/2
	2		800	۲	<mark>6/</mark> 10/2

Figure 36 Checking All the Boxes Next to Alarms to Acknowledge

- 2 Click the checkmark at the top of the column (see Figure 34 on page 34). As soon as you click the checkmark, a **Comment** dialog box appears (see Figure 35) where you can enter a comment as to why you acknowledge the selected alarms.
- **3** Once the comment is entered, click **Acknowledge**. All acknowledgeable alarms are acknowledged and disappear from the **Alarms** table.

If you need to review an alarm once it has been acknowledged, go to the **Events** table (for more information on managing events, see "Managing Events" on page 43).

## **Filtering Alarms**

In the **Alarms** panel, you can filter the content of the alarm table by status, priority, type and/or time period. You can filter the content from the general **Filters** panel or from a specific column in the **Alarms** table. The following pages explain these filtering options.

### Filtering by Alarm Status

The status of an alarm is either **Acknowledged** or **Not Acknowledged**. You can filter out all alarms that were acknowledged to keep only the alarms still needing acknowledgment.

To do so:

1 From the **Alarms** table, click the funnel icon next to the **Ack** column title. The **Status** filter is displayed.

```
Figure 37 Status Filter
```



2 In the **Status** filter, select **Not acknowledged**, then click outside the filter. The filter disappears and only alarms to be acknowledged remain in the **Alarms** table.

**NOTE:** When a filter is applied to a column, the funnel icon turns blue.

You can also filter by alarm status from the **Filters** panel.

To do so:

1 From the **Alarms** panel, click the Advanced Filter icon (see Figure 31 on page 32). The **Filters** panel appears below the **Alarms** panel.



Figure 38 Filters Panel by Status

2 Under **Status**, select **Not acknowledged**. All acknowledged alarms are immediately removed from the **Alarms** table.

For more information on acknowledging alarms, see "Acknowledging Alarms" on page 33

3 Close the Filters panel by clicking the Advanced Filter icon (see Figure 31 on page 32).

## Filtering by Priority

In Sensi+, alarms are assigned a priority, and a level within that priority as shown in the table below.

Alarm Priorities	
Priority	Severity Level
Information	0 to 99
Notification	100 to 399
Warning	400 to 699
Alarm	700 to 999

You can filter alarms by priority and/or by severity level.

To do so:

Table 4

- 1 From the **Alarms** table, click the funnel icon next to the **Priority** column. The **Priority** filter is displayed.
- Figure 39 Priority Filter



- 2 In the **Priority** filter, select the required priority from the drop-down menu. All other priorities are removed from the current **Alarms** table.
- **3** If necessary, you can fine-tune the filter further by specifying a range of security levels in the text boxes located underneath. The modified range is immediately updated as you change the range of the severity level.
- 4 Click outside the filter. The filter disappears and only alarms with the specified priorities remain in the **Alarms** table.

**NOTE:** When a filter is applied to a column, the funnel icon turns blue.

You can also filter by alarm priority from the **Filters** panel.

To do so:

1 From the **Alarms** panel, click the Advanced Filter icon (see Figure 31 on page 32). The **Filters** panel appears below the **Alarms** panel.



							S1_VALVE_REQ_CLOS			
F P C	ilters eriod All Las Fro To	st 7 m 30 06-Ju	)-May-2022 15:3 Jn-2022 15:35:4	Days 15:48 🗇 18 🛱	Process All Alert Alert Awarning Information	Namur V All V S Fallure V Check function A Out of specificatio A Maintenance requir	Status All Not acknowledged n red	Priority All 1	999	Ĭ
									Jun 6, 3	PO22 7 PM ABB

- 2 Under **Priority**, select the required priority from the drop-down menu. All other priorities are removed from the current **Alarms** table.
- **3** If necessary, you can fine-tune the filter further by specifying a range of security levels in the text boxes located underneath. The modified range is immediately updated as you change the range of the severity level.
- 4 Close the Filters panel by clicking the Advanced Filter icon (see Figure 31 on page 32).

### Filtering by Alarm Type

The analyzer can raise two alarm types: process and NAMUR. Process alarms indicate abnormal situations within the process (the monitored substances), whereas NAMUR alarms relate to abnormal situations within the analyzer itself.

#### **Quick Filter**

You can quickly filter and display alarms by type. For example, to quickly filter for all process alarms, click the Process alarms indicator in the Sensi+ top bar (see "Sensi+ Application Top Bar" on page 6). The **Alarms** panel opens, as well as the **Filters** panel, which indicates that all process alarms are displayed.



Figure 41 Filters Panel - Only Process Alarms

You can proceed in the same fashion to quickly filter by NAMUR alarms by clicking the NAMUR alarm indicator in the Sensi+ top bar (see "Sensi+ Application Top Bar" on page 6). The **Alarms** panel opens, as well as the **Filters** panel, which indicates that all NAMUR alarms are displayed.

#### From the Alarms Type column

You can also filter alarms from the **Type** column in the **Alarms** table.

To do so:

1 From the **Alarms** table, click the funnel icon next to the **Type** column title. The **Type** filter is displayed.



2 In the **Type** filter, uncheck the boxes next to the alarm types that you want hide in **Alarms** table, then click outside the filter. The filter disappears and only "checked" alarms remain in the **Alarms** table.

**NOTE:** When a filter is applied to a column, the funnel icon turns blue.

#### From the Filters panel

You can also filter by alarm type from the **Filters** panel.

To do so:

1 From the **Alarms** panel, click the Advanced Filter icon (see Figure 31 on page 32). The **Filters** panel appears below the **Alarms** panel.

From 30-May-2022 15:35:48     □       To     06-Jun-2022 15:35:48	

Figure 43 Filters Panel by Type

- 2 Under **Process** and/or **NAMUR**, uncheck the boxes next to the alarm types that you want hide in **Alarms** table. The unchecked alarms are automatically hidden and only "checked" alarms remain in the **Alarms** table.
- 3 Close the **Filters** panel by clicking the Advanced Filter icon (see Figure 31 on page 32).

## Filtering by Time Period

In the Alarms table, you can choose display only alarms that happened during a specific time period

To do so:

1 From the **Alarms** table, click the funnel icon next to the **Time** column title. The **Period** filter is displayed.



T		Time	÷ T	Message ID	Desc	ription
	Peri	iod				ROCESS
	0	All				
		Inet	7	Dave		VE_REQ_
	•	Last		Days		VE_REQ_
		From	31-May-2022 11:34	4:08 🗇		VE_REQ_
		-	7 7			VE REO

2 In the **Period** filter, you can either specify a relative time period (i.e., last 7 days, last 2 hours, etc.) or an absolute time period (from date and time *x* to date and time *y*).

#### To set a relative time period:

- **a** Select the proper unit of time (days, hours, minutes, seconds).
- **b** Enter the required number for that time period.

Figure 45 Setting a Relative Time Period Filter

/pe <b>T</b>		Ti	me 🗘	Ŧ	Message ID	Descript	ion
•	Peri	iod					CESS_
-	•	All					REQ_
•	igodot	Last	7		Days	~	REQ_
					Days		REQ_
	$\sim$	From	01-Jun-	2022 08:	5 Hours		REQ_
•	0	То С	)8-Jun-20	22 08:50	Minutes Seconds		REQ_
•							_REQ_
		6/8/202	2, 3:28:21			S1 VALV	E REQ

#### To set an absolute time period:

**a** In the **From** date field, click the calendar icon on the right-hand side of the field (see Figure 46 on page 41).

Туре 🔻	Time 🗘 🛛 🛪 Message ID						ID De	Description					
•	Perio	d										CESS_A	LARM_H
<b>A</b>	• A											ESS_W	ARNING_
•		1	7					D				REQ_C	LOSE
•		Last						Day	/5			REQ_C	LOSE
•		From	01-	Jun-	202	22 08	8:59	:37	) - B			REQ_C	LOSE
•		To C	June	2022	-			$\wedge$	J.		<b>1</b>		OSE
•					-		-		Ť	08	59	37	OSE
•		5/8/202	Su	Mo	Iu	we	In	Fr	Sa	09	00	38	OSE
•		5/8/202	29 5	30 6	31	8	2	3 10	4	10	01	39	OSE
•		5/8/202	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	11	02	40	OSE
•		5/8/202	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	12	03	41	OSE
•		/8/202	26	27	28	29	30	1	2	13	04	42	OSE
-		/8/202	3	4	5	6	7	8	9				OSE

- **b** On the left-hand side of the filter, select the start **date** of the time period.
- c On the right-hand side of the filter, select a start **time** for the time period.
- **d** Repeat steps **b** and **c** for the end time period in the **To** date field. The **Alarms** table is automatically updated.
- **3** Click outside the filter. The filter disappears and only alarms that occurred during the specified time period remain in the **Alarms** table.

**NOTE:** When a filter is applied to a column, the funnel icon turns blue.

## **Exporting Alarms**

In the current version of the Web remote interface, alarms cannot be exported independently. However, they can be exported as part of an events report (for more information on exporting events, see "Managing Reports" on page 53).

Page intentionally left blank



# **Managing Events**

Events happen inside the analyzer: configuration changes, status changes (warning to alarm, warning to normal, etc.), system errors and reboots, etc. These events are recorded by the Sensi+ gaz analyzer. The following pages explain how to manage these events.

## **Displaying Events**

To display analyzer events, click **Events** from the Sensi+ application sidebar. By default, events are sorted in reverse chronological order (most recent first), and filtered to display only events that occurred during the last week.

## Sorting Events

In the **Events** panel, you can sort events in chronological or reverse chronological order. By default, events are sorted in reverse chronological order (most recent first).

To sort events:

1 From the Sensi+ application sidebar, click **Events**.

Figure 47 Events Panel

				Sensi	i+		Exporting reports icon	Advanced Filter icon
I Measurements								$\setminus$
Alarms	Event	S						
								<b>, , ,</b>
🏟 Settings		A ale w	Deleviter W	Tree	Time *	Massage ID	Description	
Reports			700	Туре	8/31/2022 6-39-32 AM	Message ID		
💾 Users								
🔑 Maintenance								
③ Help								
							H2S: PROCESS_ALARM	

2 In the **Time** column, click ▼ to sort alarms starting with the latest, and ▲ to sort them starting from the earliest.

## **Acknowledging Events**

It is possible to acknowledge events for which actions have been taken. You can either acknowledge each event individually or all at once and you can do so while being connected remotely or when you are on site without a computer handy.

From the **Events** table, you can acknowledge individual events, more than one event or all events at once. The following pages explain these procedures.

NOTE: Events displaying a dash in the Ack column cannot be acknowledged.

### Acknowledging One Event

To acknowledge just one event:

1 From the **Events** table, underneath the **Ack** column, check the box next to the event that you want to acknowledge (see Figure 48).

Figure 48 Checking a Box to Acknowledge One Event

				Sensi+	
	Even	ts			l
~		Ack <b>T</b>	Priority <b>T</b>	Туре	
				•	
	Ο			•	
				•	
>				-	
>	0	-		-	
1.1	0			•	6

**2** As soon as you check the box in the **Ack** column, a **Comment** dialog box appears (see Figure 49) where you can enter a comment as to why you acknowledge the selected event.



Acknowledge 1 events	×
Comment	
T	
	Acknowledge

**3** Once the comment is entered, click **Acknowledge**. The selected event is acknowledged and a checkmark appears in next to it in the **Ack** column.

### Acknowledging More Than One Event

To acknowledge more than one event:

1 From the **Events** table, in the leftmost column (left of the **Ack** column), check the boxes next to the events that you want to acknowledge (see Figure 50).

Figure 50 Checking the Boxes Next to Events to Acknowledge

				Sensi	•
	Event	ts			
	$\bigcirc$				
~		Ack <b>T</b>	Priority <b>T</b>	Туре	Time
				•	
				•	
	×			•	
				•	
>				•	6/14/2022,
			400	Δ	6/14/2022,1

2 Click the checkmark at the top of the column (see Figure 50). As soon as click the checkmark, a Comment dialog box appears (see Figure 51) where you can enter a comment as to why you acknowledge the selected events.



**3** Once the comment is entered, click **Acknowledge**. The selected events are acknowledged and a checkmark appears in next to them in the **Ack** column.

### Acknowledging All Events at Once

To acknowledge all events at once:

1 From the **Events** table, in the leftmost column (left of the **Ack** column), check the box in the column title. This selects all current events (see Figure 52).



Figure 52 Checking the Boxes Next to Events to Acknowledge

- 2 Click the checkmark at the top of the column (see Figure 52). As soon as click the checkmark, a **Comment** dialog box appears (see Figure 51) where you can enter a comment as to why you acknowledge the selected events.
- **3** Once the comment is entered, click **Acknowledge**. All events are acknowledged and a checkmark appears in next to them in the **Ack** column.

## **Filtering Events**

In the **Events** panel, you can filter the content of the event table by status, priority and/or time period. You can filter the content from the general **Filters** panel or from a specific column in the **Events** table. The following pages explain these filtering options.

### Filtering by Event Status

The status of an event is either **Acknowledged** or **Not Acknowledged**. You can filter out all events that were acknowledged to keep only the events still needing acknowledgment.

To do so:

1 From the **Events** table, click the funnel icon next to the **Ack** column title. The **Status** filter is displayed.

Figure 53 Status Filter



2 In the **Status** filter, select **Not acknowledged**, then click outside the filter. The filter disappears and only events to be acknowledged remain in the **Events** table.

**NOTE:** When a filter is applied to a column, the funnel icon turns blue.

You can also filter by event status from the **Filters** panel.

To do so:

1 From the **Events** panel, click the Advanced Filter icon (see Figure 47 on page 43). The **Filters** panel appears below the **Events** panel.

Filt	ers									
Per	iod					Status	Priority			
0	Last	7	Days			<ul> <li>All</li> <li>Not acknowledged</li> </ul>	All			
0	From	07-Jun-202	2 14:21:27						999	
0	То	14-Jun-2022 1	4:21:27							

Figure 54 Filters Panel by Status

2 Under **Status**, select **Not acknowledged**. All acknowledged events are immediately removed from the **Events** table.

For more information on acknowledging events, see "Acknowledging Events" on page 44.

3 Close the Filters panel by clicking the Advanced Filter icon (see Figure 47 on page 43).

### Filtering by Priority

In Sensi+, events are assigned a priority, and a level within that priority, as shown in the table below.

Table 5 Event Priorities

Priority	Severity Level
Information	0 to 99
Notification	100 to 399
Warning	400 to 699
Alarm	700 to 999

You can filter events by priority and/or by severity level.

To do so:

- 1 From the **Events** table, click the funnel icon next to the **Priority** column. The **Priority** filter is displayed.
- Figure 55 Priority Filter



- 2 In the **Priority** filter, select the required priority from the drop-down menu. All other priorities are removed from the current **Events** table.
- **3** If necessary, you can fine-tune the filter further by specifying a range of security levels in the text boxes located underneath. The modified range is immediately updated as you change the range of the severity level.
- 4 Click outside the filter. The filter disappears and only events with the specified priorities remain in the **Events** table.

**NOTE:** When a filter is applied to a column, the funnel icon turns blue.

You can also filter by event priority from the **Filters** panel.

To do so:

- 1 From the **Events** panel, click the Advanced Filter icon (see Figure 31 on page 32). The **Filters** panel appears below the **Events** panel.
- 48 User Guide



				<u> </u>	6/14,				_warning_high	
F	Filter									
P	Perio	d				Status	Priority			
9	•	Last	7	Days		<ul> <li>All</li> <li>Not acknowledge</li> </ul>	All	×.]		
		From	07-Jun-2022	14:21:27			1	999		
		То	14-Jun-2022 14	:21:27						
×										

- 2 Under **Priority**, select the required priority from the drop-down menu. All other priorities are removed from the current **Events** table.
- **3** If necessary, you can fine-tune the filter further by specifying a range of security levels in the text boxes located underneath. The modified range is immediately updated as you change the range of the severity level.
- 4 Close the Filters panel by clicking the Advanced Filter icon (see Figure 47 on page 43).

### Filtering by Time Period

In the **Events** table, you can choose display only events that happened during a specific time period.

To do so:

1 From the **Events** table, click the funnel icon next to the **Time** column title. The **Period** filter is displayed.



2 In the **Period** filter, you can either specify a relative time period (i.e., last 7 days, last 2 hours, etc.) or an absolute time period (from date and time *x* to date and time *y*).

#### To set a relative time period:

- a Select the proper unit of time (days, hours, minutes, seconds).
- **b** Enter the required number for that time period.

#### Figure 58 Setting a Relative Time Period Filter

	Tim	ie 🗘 🔻 🔻	Message ID	Descri	ption
Peri	iod				
0	Last	7	Days	~	CES
			Davs		
	From	07-Jun-2022 14:5	Hours	<b>N</b>	CES
0	To	4-Jun-2022 14:53:1	Minutes Seconds	×	
L	-				OCES

#### To set an absolute time period:

a In the From date field, click the calendar icon on the right-hand side of the field (see Figure 59).

Figure 59 Setting an absolute time period filter

Туре		Tin	ne 🗘					Mes	sage	ID	Descrip	tion		
	Per	iod										DCESS_		
	0	Last	7					Day	/5		~	CESS_	WARNING_HIC	
•			-						2	_		DCESS_ALARM_HIGH		
		From	07	Jun	202	22 14	:53	:10	Ċ			CESS_	WARNING_HIC	
	0	То	1 June	e 2022	2 -			$\uparrow$	$\downarrow$			40	ALARM_HIGH	
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·								14	53	10	VARNING HIC	
			Su	Мо	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa	15	54	11		
			29	30	31	1	2	3	4					
			5	6	7	8	9	10	11	16	55	12		
			12	13	14	15	16	17	18	17	56	13		
Days			19	20	21	22	23	24	25	18	57	14		
			26	27	28	29	30	1	2	19	58	15		
1:27			3	4	5	6	7	8	9	15	00	10		
	•		Cl	ear				То	day	20	59	16		

- **b** On the left-hand side of the filter, select the start **date** of the time period.
- c On the right-hand side of the filter, select a start **time** for the time period.
- **d** Repeat steps **b** and **c** for the end time period in the **To** date field. The **Alarms** table is automatically updated.
- **3** Click outside the filter. The filter disappears and only alarms that occurred during the specified time period remain in the **Alarms** table.

**NOTE:** When a filter is applied to a column, the funnel icon turns blue.

## **Exporting Events**

In the current version of the Web remote interface, events can be exported from the **Reports** panel. For more information on exporting events, see "Managing Reports" on page 53.

Page intentionally left blank



# **Managing Reports**

With the initial release of the Sensi+ remote software, you can generate and download five types of reports:

- Events: content of the Events table
- Results: instrument data and measured gas concentrations
- **Results (compact)**: instrument data and measured gas concentrations, and instrument health monitoring, in a more compact format
- Health Monitoring: instrument health monitoring data
- Health Monitoring (compact): instrument health monitoring data in a more compact format

## **Generating Reports**

**NOTE:** Report generation can take between a few seconds and a few minutes depending on the type and size of the report to generate.

To generate any of these reports:

- 1 In the Sensi+ application sidebar, select **Reports**.
- 2 In the **Reports** panel, under the reports **Name** list, select the report that you want to generate (see Figure 60).



		Sensi+					•••	⊗
₿≞ Measurements ▲ Alarms	Reports							
😇 Events	Name	Results						
Settings >	Events	Description	Last mo	ath results				
🛃 Reports		Description:	Last mo	nun results				
📇 Users	Results (compact)	Report Type:	Results					
🔑 Maintenance >	Health Monitoring		O All					
(7) Help >	Health Monitoring (compact)	Dested	Last		2 Days			
		Perioa:	From	26-Aug-2022 11:5	8:18 🗇			
			То	02-Sep-2022 11:58:	18 🗂			
		Last generation time:						
«			Genera	<b>te now</b> Downloa				
🜲 🕐 🔁 admin					(îr	und a s	ep 2, 2022 12:03 PM	ABB

3 Click **Generate now**. The report file is generated and the date and time of that report appear next to **Latest generation time**. To view the content of this report, you will need to export that report as explained in the next section.

## **Downloading Reports**

To download any of these reports:

- 1 In the Sensi+ application sidebar, select **Reports**.
- 2 In the **Reports** panel, under the report **Name** list, select the generated report that you want to download (to generate a report, see "Generating Reports" on page 53).

If there is no **Latest generation time** indicated, no report has been generated at this point. You will need to generate that report before downloading it, as explained in "Generating Reports" on page 53

			Sensi+		
∬≣ Measurements ▲ Alarms		Reports			
😇 Events		Name	Events		
Settings		Events	Description:	Last month events	
Reports Users		Results (compact)	Report Type:	Events	
Maintenance		Health Monitoring		O All	
⑦ Help		Health Monitoring (compact)		• Last 1 Hours	
			Perioa:	From 26-Aug-2022 12:07:49	
				To 02-Sep-2022 12:07:49 □	
	~		Last generation t	ime: 2022-9-21:34:04 ay Generate now Download latest	
💄 ? 🔁 adr	min		ିଣ		Sep 2,

**3** Click **Download latest**. A **Save As** dialog box appears in which you can browse to a directory where you want to save the report file (*.tsv* file).



- 4 If necessary, you can also change the name of the report file. By default, the report is named as indicated in the **Reports** list (*Events.tsv, Results.tsv, CompactResults.tsv, HealthMonitoring.tsv, CompactHealthMonitoring.tsv*).
- 5 In the Save As dialog box, click Save.The report file is downloaded in the selected directory.

## CHAPTER 7 Troubleshooting

As usual with ABB products, reliability is of the essence. Troubleshooting might happen occasionally. Most of the time, service has to be performed by authorized ABB service personnel. If such situations arise, you will need to contact ABB after-sales service. When in contact with ABB service personnel, you might be asked to provide certain information about your system. The following pages provide relevant details.

## **Diagnosing Problems**

Most problems that could happen within the Sensi+ gas analyzer will be recorded as events in the **Events** table. You will be informed of these problems either with alarms or by looking at the LEDs on the analyzer housing. The meaning of the various LEDs is explained below.



Table 6 Analyzer LED Behavior



## **Rebooting the Analyzer**

After performing certain maintenance tasks, you might need to reboot the analyzer.

To do so:

Figure 62 Rebooting the Analyzer

- 1 In the Sensi+ application sidebar, select Maintenance > Analyzer Control.
- 2 In the Analyzer Control panel, click Reboot instrument (see Figure 62).

```
Sensi+
Measurements
                             Analyzer Control
Alarms
                             Service Ticket Allowed:
Events
Settings
                        >
Reports
P Users
🔑 Maintenance
    Analyzer Local Display
    Validation
    Advanced
(?) Help
                                      Apply Reboot instrument
                                                                                                           Sep 2, 2022
                                                                                                                      ABP
     ?
            Ð
                                                                                              ই
                                                                                                    -Tr
12:19 PM
```

The instrument will shut down and restart, going through all the initialization process. You can follow the reboot process by watching the LEDs behavior, as indicated in Table 6 on page 55.

## Installing Firmware Updates

At some point in the future, you might be asked by ABB service representatives to update your analyzer firmware. Firmware updates can only be performed locally via a USB key.

Before performing any firmware update, it is **strongly recommended** to export your system results and events (see "Managing Reports" on page 53).

To install a firmware update:

- 1 Insert the USB key containing the firmware update in the analyzer USB port.
- 2 Reboot the analyzer (see "Rebooting the Analyzer" on page 57)Once the analyzer has rebooted, follow the on-screen instructions.

## Performing Analyzer Validation

Analyzer validation is typically performed at the end of commissioning to ensure that the system is working properly from the beginning.

To perform a validation:

- 1 Connect the computer and the analyzer (see "Connecting to the Analyzer" on page 2).
- **2** Log in to the analyzer as administrator (see "Logging Into the Analyzer" on page 3).
- 3 In the Sensi+ application sidebar, select Maintenance > Validation (see Figure 63).

Figure 63 Validation panel

	Sensi+
<b>∬</b> [≣] Measurements	Maltalation
🛕 Alarms	Validation
😇 Events	Validation Mode:
🔅 Settings	
Reports	
💾 Users	
🔑 Maintenance	~
Analyzer Local Display	
Analyzer Control	
Advanced	
(?) Help	
	Cancel Apply
	«
A CO Co admin	

- 4 From the Validation panel, click the Validation Mode toggle button, then click Apply. This raises a NAMUR orange alarm (instrument not ready/unhealthy) (see "Introducing NAMUR and Process Alarm Conventions" on page 31).
- **5** Prepare the system to switch from live stream to validation gas bottle.
- **6** Connect the validation gas bottle to the gas input port and make sure that it is ready for the switch from live stream.
- 7 Switch stream to the validation gas bottle and note the required information.
- 8 Switch back to live stream and disconnect the validation gas bottle.
- **9** Wait until measurements return to their normal/expected values.
- 10 Once the measured values have returned to normal, go back to the Validation panel (Maintenance > Validation [see Figure 63]), click the Validation Mode toggle button, then click Apply.

## Performing Advanced Troubleshooting

Performing advanced troubleshooting is reserved to personnel who has received the appropriate training. During this training, they will have received all the instructions needed to understand the underlying analyzer behavior.

An advanced troubleshooting panel is accessible from the Sensi+ application sidebar under

#### Maintenance > Advanced.



## About Your Sensi+ Gas Analyzer

Should you need to contact the ABB after-sales service for troubleshooting purposes, you might be asked to provide specific information about your analyzer. This information is accessed either directly on the analyzer physical screen or remotely from the analyzer local display panel in the Web remote interface.

To access this information:

- In the Sensi+ application sidebar, select Maintenance > Analyzer local display. The exact information displayed on the analyzer physical screen appears on the remote interface.
- **NOTE:** The first of four dots is highlighted at the bottom of the analyzer local display. These dots are **panel identifiers** to help you navigate through the information panels of the local display.



Figure 65 Analyzer Local Display in the Sensi+ Application

- **2** On your computer keyboard, press the right arrow twice or reach the third panel of the local display. This gives you access to some basic mechanical information about the analyzer, including a QR code.
- **NOTE:** From the Web remote interface, you can use all keyboard arrow keys (up, down, left, right) to navigate through the various local GUI screens, as you would with gesture on the real local GUI.

**NOTE:** The QR codes give you access to an ABB Web page.

Figure 66 Analyzer Local Display Basic Mechanical Data

	2	Sensi+				<b>•••</b>	8
<b>∦</b> [∉] Measurements	Analyzer Local Display	B					
Alarms					_		
🛱 Events			Sensi+		<b>1</b> 🖌		
Settings >	Diagnostic Item	Value		Ministra and States			
Reports	Model	gla533_ng.zip	님	ht www.iehoe	No.		
💾 Users	Pump State Block Valve State	ON (#1)		的人民的中国			
🏓 Maintenance 🛛 🗸 🗸	Block valve State			16 A. 4 2 4 4	in zgi		
Analyzer Local Display Validation Analyzer Control Advanced Help >			121222232				
				<u> PROSERTA</u>			
~	***			10.102.22.14 16:33:32 U	48 TC ABB		
🜲 🕐 🛃 admin						Sep 2, 2022 12:33 PM	ABB

**3** Press the right arrow one more time to reach the fourth panel of the local display. This gives you access to various software and firmware data about the analyzer, including a QR code.

Figure 67	Analvzer	Local	Display	Basic	Software	Data
	7 11 101 9 2 0 1	Loca	Dispidy.	Dasie	Dontriance	Date

			Sensi+				<b>•••</b>	8
<b>§</b> ≣ Measurements		And have been been been been						
🛕 Alarms		Analyzer Local Displa	y ee					
📰 Events			Sensi	i+				
🔅 Settings		Component	Version #					
Reports		Build Date	2022-08-30T17:44:31Z	口题为新教	i dan			
💾 Users		NGICOS application GLA533 Model	1.0.0-dev-62-71-gc8fa 0.55-g0dc4	18.5.46	an inter			
🏓 Maintenance		WORKSPACE	1.0.0-dev-66-4-gb1ea	122324	H1014-2			
Analyzer Local Display		OS	1.0.0-dev-1-223-g68c0	126-24-07	e es r			
Validation		s400g API	8.1.14-dev-g0b2c	L P.C. 47	音どでと			
Analyzer Control		ICOS library	1.1.0-ga051	1 AL 1. 14	- 11 A			
Advanced		Skewfit	1.5-g56da	120000000000		F 46 1		
⑦ Help		ATW library	2.1.0.0-2022-05-30-428- gd942	34.83				
		Device serial number		392,846	9. E.V.	39 M I		
		CPU serial number	DWD090002	日日日日に	计子语序			
		MATLAB	8A3D					
			• • • •	•				
		0 <del>1 1 1</del> 1			16:30:30 UTC	ABB		
	~~							
🜲 🕐 🛃 admin					(îr-	<b>.</b>	Sep 2, 2022 12:30 PM	ABB

Page intentionally left blank

#### APPENDIX A

# The Local Graphical User Interface

The Sensi+ gas analyzer screen displays a graphical user interface (the Measurements panel; see Figure 69 on page 64) once the start-up sequence is completed. The following pages provide further details on the information available on the various information panels that can be displayed.

You navigate through the information panels by swiping your hand in front of the gesture sensors located below the screen (refer to the Sensi+ Installation and Commissioning Guide.if you need to locate the gesture sensors).

Hand swipes up, down, left, and right, made one inch in front of gesture sensors, allow you to access the different information panels, as illustrated below.



Figure 68 Gesture navigation

## **Information Panels**

The following sections provide more details on the various information panels accessible on the gas analyzer screen.

For more information on the configuration of the displayed units of measurement, alarms and alarm thresholds, as well as a more complete description of the various types of alarms, see the appropriate sections elsewhere in this guide.

#### You cannot modify the information displayed directly from the analyzer graphical user interface.

### **Measurements Panel**

This is the main panel indicating the contaminants measured, the measurements themselves, and the general trends (see "Configuring Gas Measurement Units" on page 14, and "Configuring Gas Parameters" on page 15), as well as the presence of process and NAMUR alarms (see "Introducing NAMUR and Process Alarm Conventions" on page 31).

**NOTE:** The NAMUR and process alarms colors (cyan, amber, red) carry the same meaning throughout the graphical user interface.

Figure 69 Measurements Panel



### **Non-Linear Trend Panels**

Non-linear trend panels use warning and alarm threshold limits (illustrated by the cyan, amber and red colors) as the Y-axis separation. Each contaminant has its own non-linear trend panel.

These panels are designed to specifically highlight transitions between normal contaminant concentration values and outlying concentration values. They constitute a more detailed view of the non-linear trend graphics displayed in the Measurements panel (see Figure 69 on page 64)



Figure 70 Non-Linear Thread Panel

Y-axis threshold-based indicators

### **Linear Trend Panels**

In linear trend panels, the scaling gives a linear representation of the measured values but less appreciation of the alarm and warning thresholds. Each contaminant has its own non-linear trend panel.

The main difference with non-linear trend panels is the Y-axis scaling.





### Alarms

The alarms panel displays the various ongoing alarms that the analyzer is experiencing. You cannot manage these alarms (acknowledgment, filtering, etc.) from the local graphical user interface (GUI). You must connect to the analyzer via the Web remote interface (as explained in the guide) and follow the instructions given in "Managing Alarms" on page 31 and "Managing Events" on page 43).

			Sensi+	×
	Date/Time	Pri.	Event Description	
-	2022-08-29 15:49:31	700	CO2: PROCESS_ALARM_HIGH	
	2022-08-29 15:34:37	800	S1_VALVE_REQ_CLOSE	
×	2022-08-29 15:49:31	700	CLIENT_BOARD_SUPPLY_ALARM_LOW	

## Diagnostics

The diagnostic panel provides information on the state of important analyzer mechanical components (pump and block valve).

The QR code on the right directs you to an ABB Web page.



		Sensi+			° 😣
Diagnostic Item	Value	C C	n ki sa se		
Model Pump State Block Valve State	gla533_ng.zip ON (#1) OPEN				
e-/				10.102.22.148 15:49:37 UTC	ABB
## **Advanced Diagnostics**

The advanced diagnostic panel provides more detailed information on specific components of the analyzer (measured values, gas and instrument temperatures and pressures, laser characteristics, etc.). Explanations on this advanced diagnostic panel are provided during formal advanced training.



Figure 74 Advanced Diagnostics Panel

## System Information

The system information panel provides technical information specific to your analyzer. The QR code on the right directs you to an ABB Web page.



	Sensi	+ 🗾 🔀
Component	Version #	
Build Date	2022-08-29T14:01:52Z	
NGICOS application	1.0.0-dev-62-58-g0128	
GLA533 Model	0.55-g0dc4	1975年6月1日日本1976年6月5日日午日
WORKSPACE	1.0.0-dev-66-4-gb1ea	178 H - H - H - H - H - H - H - H - H - H
OS	1.0.0-dev-1-223-g68c0	i Azərba yayı dayı ata aldı.
s400g API	8.1.14-dev-g0b2c	的名称的复数形式分析学习
ICOS library	1.1.0-ga051	[2] 문화 김희 김희 김희 정말 :
Skewfit	1.5-g56da	
ATW library	2.1.0.0-2022-05-30-428- gd942	
Device serial number		
CPU serial number	DWD090002	
MATLAB	8A3D	
		•
● <u>/*</u>		10.102.22.148 15:51:49 UTC ABB



## ABB, Inc. Measurement & Analytics

3400, rue Pierre-Ardouin Québec (Québec) G1P 0B2 Canada

## Phone:

North America: 1 800 858 3847 Worldwide: +1 418 877 8111

Email:

icos.@ca.abb.com

WWW.abb.com/analytical

We reserve the right to make technical changes or modify the contents of this document without prior notice. With regard to purchase orders, the agreed particulars shall prevail. ABB does not accept any responsibility whatsoever for potential errors or possible lack of information in this document.

We reserve all rights in this document and in the subject matter and illustrations contained therein. Any reproduction, disclosure to third parties or utilization of its contents, in whole or in parts, is forbidden without prior written consent from ABB.

OI_GLA533-EN_A

